# TRIBAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF THE CONFEDERATED SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES OF THE FLATHEAD INDIAN NATION, MONTANA

Volume 14 Number 60 Held: June 10, 2014 Council Chambers, Pablo, MT Approved: June 19, 2014

**MEMBERS PRESENT**: Ron Trahan, Chairman; Carole Lankford, Vice-Chairman; James "Bing" Matt, Secretary; Leonard TwoTeeth, Treasurer; Shelly Fyant; Leonard Gray; Vernon Finley; and Terry Pitts.

**MEMBERS ABSENT**: Lloyd Irvine (Travel Status); and Patty Stevens (Travel Status).

**OTHERS PRESENT**: Sharon Silberman, Council Support; and Abby Dupuis, Recording Secretary.

The meeting was called to **order** at 9:04 a.m. Quorum established.

The meeting was opened with a **prayer** by Carole Lankford.

The **Tribal Council Meeting Minutes** for May 29, 2014 were presented for approval.

**MOTION** by Carole Lankford to approve the Tribal Council Meeting Minutes for May 29, 2014, with corrections. Seconded by Leonard TwoTeeth. Carried, 6 for; 2 abstentions (Leonard Gray and Ron Trahan).

The **Tribal Council Meeting Minutes** for June 3, 2014 were presented for approval. **Bing Matt** asked about the status of the Two Eagle River School Language Program. **Chairman Trahan** will schedule time with Vern Clairmont to discuss this matter.

**MOTION** by Carole Lankford to approve the Tribal Council Meeting Minutes for June 3, 2014, with corrections. Seconded by Leonard Gray. Carried, 6 for; 1 abstention (Vernon Finley); 1 not voting (Leonard TwoTeeth out of the room).

The **agenda** was presented for approval.

**MOTION** by Bing Matt to approve the agenda, with changes. Seconded by Leonard Gray. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

Marvin Bourdon, Tribal Member; Claire Charlo, Tribal Defenders Office; and Jami Hamel, Policy Analyst; discussed an outstanding warrant for a felony escape charge that stems back to 2003 which makes Marvin ineligible for Social Security. The Defenders Office has been attempting to work with the prosecutor from Washington. Due to this matter he is not eligible for any assistance from tribal programs. Mr. Bourdon is unable to travel due to his medical condition. Marvin is in need of financial assistance for his power bill, a prescription and his telephone bill. Terry Pitts would like to follow up with Senator Tester. Carole Lankford suggested having Claire send a letter to Tim Fox explaining why Mr. Bourdon cannot travel to Washington to appear in court. Carole and Ron will follow up on this matter when they are in Helena. Council directed Jami to follow up with the Department of Human Resources Development to do a payback agreement.

**Barbara Finley**, Tribal Member, informed council that she needs assistance for car repairs and was denied assistance from the Dire Need program and Tribal Credit. **Council** directed Jami Hamel to follow up on possible assistance options.

**Francis Auld**, Preservation Department, informed council that he received a call from the Tribal Lands Department saying they were on the fast track to receive information from the experts to evaluate establishing a buffalo herd on the reservation. He discussed the significance of buffalo. Francis has no objection to having a herd but he reminded council that when these types of things are in discussion that the culture committees need to be involved. Francis also suggested reviewing the Special Management Plan for the Chief Cliff area. He thanked the tribal council for their continued support of the armed forces; his son will be home soon.

**Kevin Howlett**, Tribal Health & Human Services, discussed the upcoming holidays for July 4. Tribal Health's work schedule is 9 hours Monday through Thursday and 4 hours on Friday. Kevin's staff has asked for fair consideration for their hours of work. Instead of working 4 hours on July 4 the staff would like to work the 4 hours on Thursday and take off July 4, which is a federal holiday. It is an hour difference in equal time off but is what the staff recommended. Kevin would like Tribal Health to go back to a 5/8 work schedule and will bring that forth in the near future.

**MOTION** by Carole Lankford to go along with the department head's recommendation and allow a changed work schedule for Tribal Health & Human Services to work 4 hours on July 3, to equalize the time off for employees. Seconded by Leonard Gray. Carried, 7 for; 1 opposed (Shelly Fyant).

**Shelly Fyant**, for the record, "We haven't accommodated any other departments for a changed holiday work schedule, like Kicking Horse Job Corps or Tribal Credit, and I feel like Tribal Health is not accessible to the membership with its current schedule so I am glad you are going back to five eights."

**Terry Pitts**, for the record, "Even if we stay with the existing schedule we can look at next year's calendar and address it a year in advance so it doesn't come down to these decisions each year. I wish we would look at the schedule a year in advance so we can take care of it so everyone will know the schedule."

Janet Camel, Economic Development; and CloAnn Westerman, Tribal Lands Department; discussed Elders Park in St. Ignatius. There is a permit for the baseball leagues for part of the year and the league mows the park. Tribal Health plows the walking track in the winter time. The park is 20 years old and there are no benches in the park. They purchased concrete benches from Walmart and want permission to install them at the park. It is a community effort. Jim Westerman wants to install a bench in memory of his son. **Kevin Howlett** advised that diabetes funding was used to pay for the track. Kevin said these benches might be an allowable expenditure from the diabetes funding; if so, then Tribal Health is willing to make a contribution. He also suggested contacting the town of St. Ignatius for a contribution since the park is used by nonmembers as well. It was the **consensus** of council to install benches at Elders Park.

Janet Camel, Economic Development; and CloAnn Westerman, Tribal Lands Department; want to proceed with some planning. Early Childhood Services will be moving to the Neil Charlo Building and needs to park 18-20 busses. There is an area in the southwest corner of the baseball field that could be cleaned up and made for parking. They also want to develop a handicapped parking area to access the track. A level connecting path is needed. Willie Stevens is willing to work with them to develop a plan. They want permission to proceed with this request. It was the **consensus** of council to proceed with obtaining cost estimates and present back for possible funding options.

# \*\*\*\*\*\* Break \*\*\*\*\*\*

**Council** conducted interviews for the S&K Electronics Board of Directors vacancies.

**MOTION** by Shelly Fyant to accept the results of the ballot and appoint James Halverson, Gerald Brown and Casey Lozar to serve on the S&K Electronics Board of Directors. Seconded by Carole Lankford. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

**Council** conducted interviews for the Shoreline Protection Board of Directors vacancy.

**MOTION** by Shelly Fyant to accept the results of the ballot and appoint Craig Pablo to serve on the Shoreline Protection Board of Directors. Seconded by Leonard Gray. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

**Vernon Finley** gave an update on his trip to the Geogenetics Research Lab at Copenhagen University. It was a real interesting and great trip. The head researcher gave a presentation on the work they did with the remains of the Anzick boy and how they did the genetic profile. Vernon learned things about the gene pool of Indians in the United States. One third of the genetic sequences of Indians here is similar to Asians. Two thirds identify the aboriginal people here. Using that, they were able to debunk some of the migration theories. The head researcher believes we were here longer than they expected. Once science really develops all of the science technique, the more they confirm the oral histories of the aboriginal people. Vernon was able to tour the lab. Shane Doyle worked with a member of the Anzick family and got her to agree to return the remains to the tribe in Montana. They also want to obtain all the artifacts that were buried with the boy.

**Renee Joachim**, Personnel Department, met with council in **executive session** to discuss a personnel matter.

Council reconvened into **regular session**.

**MOTION** by Vernon Finley to accept the results of the ballot and select Jean Matt for the Mission Valley Power General Manager position. Seconded by Leonard Gray. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

# \*\*\*\*\*\* Lunch \*\*\*\*\*\*

**Anita Matt** and **Brad Trosper**, Tribal Lands Department, followed up on the request from the town of Hot Springs for permission to conduct a survey on tribal property to install a 200,000 gallon water storage tank. Once the survey is completed an appraisal would be done, and then be brought back to council for consideration. **Leonard TwoTeeth** would like to require the engineering firm to contract with our tribal member surveyor to do the survey. Anita said she could ask them to use the tribal member surveyor. **No action taken**. **Council** requested further information.

**Brad Trosper**, Tribal Lands Department, gave an update on the rewrite of the Tribal Lands Ordinance and the process on how to proceed. Brad requested that he be allotted time with council each week for 45 minutes to go through the draft document, so the November 1 deadline can be met to have a

completed document. **Shelly Fyant** told Brad that people at her district meeting want the document uploaded to the tribal website to allow comments from the membership. **Chairman Trahan** would like to have the weekly meeting held on Thursdays. **Wade Hendrickson**, Tribal Member, commented on agricultural leases and gave council a handout. **Carole Lankford** thinks the Tribal Administrative Procedures Ordinance most likely needs updates too. **Council** wants to ensure that any draft documents be approved by the tribal council before being uploaded on the tribal website. The Tribal Lands Department was established by council action to adopt an organizational chart and advertisement of a department head, so the ordinance would formally establish the department, the purpose of the department, and the duties and powers of the department.

**Carolee Wenderoth**, Tribal Lands Department, presented a request to designate the land use of a portion of Tribal Tract T7027 to Salish Kootenai College as government use by resolution for a telecommunication repeater site for KSKC Public TV. The Lands Department recommended instead of charging the \$6,000 annual use fee to contribute that as an in-kind contribution to SKC.

**MOTION** by Shelly Fyant to approve by resolution the designation of a portion of Tribal Tract T7027 to Salish Kootenai College as government use for a telecommunication repeater site for KSKC Public TV. Seconded by Leonard Gray. Carried, 5 for; 2 opposed (Vernon Finley and Bing Matt); 1 abstention (Terry Pitts).

**Terry Pitts**, for the record, "We have forgiven and contributed to the College and I'd like to have a report of all such to assist in the best decision."

**Leonard TwoTeeth**, for the record, "I do approve of the project. However, we need to be sure that this is exclusive use for SKC, that we don't want any other entity piggy-backing on this."

**Vernon Finley**, for the record, "I opposed because I would like a complete assessment of everything that is contributed to the college, including from the tribal enterprises that's been designated for the college. I am in favor of this particular lease, but I want an overall assessment on what we donate there."

## **RESOLUTION 14-163**

RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATE A PORTION OF TRIBAL TRACT T7027, CONSISTING OF .625 ACRES, FOR GOVERNMENT USE FOR A TELECOMMUNICATION REPEATER SITE FOR SALISH KOOTENAI COLLEGE (KSKC PUBLIC TV)

# BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRIBAL COUNCIL OF THE CONFEDERATED SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES THAT:

**WHEREAS**, the Tribal Council of the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes is the duly recognized governing body of the Flathead Reservation; and

**WHEREAS**, the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes are committed to the sound planning and management of Flathead Reservation resources and lands; and

**WHEREAS**, review of the site, located in the SE½SE½NW¼NW¼SW¼ of Section 11, T. 23 N., R. 19 W., P.M.M., shows that the area was initially created for use as a telephone type tower by Mission Valley Power and a TV Tax District, that was later removed; and

**WHEREAS**, the Tribal Economic Development Department Land Use Planning Director, in cooperation with the Tribal Lands Department, completed a site review to determine the size of land to be used to be .625 acres; and

**WHEREAS**, Salish Kootenai College needs a formal designation of the SE½SE¼NW¼NW¼SW¼ of Section 11, T. 23 N., R. 19 W., P.M.M., Lake County, Montana, for use as a telecommunication repeater site;

**NOW THEREFORE**, **BE IT RESOLVED**, that the Tribal Council of the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes of the Flathead Reservation hereby designates for government use the SE½SE½NW½NW½SW¾, located within Section 11, T. 23 N., R. 19 W., P.M.M., Lake County, Montana, consisting of .625 acres, more or less, on Tract T7027, a telecommunication repeater site for Salish Kootenai College KSKC Public TV, as shown on the attached plat (Exhibit B) for a period of ten (10) years, and this resolution may be rescinded if the site is no longer needed for stated purpose.

**Carolee Wenderoth**, Tribal Lands Department, presented a request for a revocable permit from Jim Bassett for the Smoke House Grill to have a take-out stand. He wants a one year permit at a rate of \$350 per month. Insurance would be required.

**MOTION** by Vernon Finley to grant Jim Bassett a one-year revocable permit for the Smoke House Grill to have a take-out stand at a rate of \$350 per month. Seconded by Bing Matt. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

**Carolee Wenderoth**, Tribal Lands Department, informed council that the lease for the water tower in Arlee expired and has an option to renew for another 25 years. The Salish Kootenai Housing Authority wants to exercise the 25-year

renewal option to utilize Tribal Tract T1351 (.69 acres). The Lands Department recommended assessing a \$25 annual use fee and a one-time administrative fee in the amount of \$18.75. Jason Adams is opposed to the fee. The Legal Department reviewed this and advised that assessing the annual use fee did not have any bearing on conflicting with SKHA's ordinance. The federal regulations require that the Lands Department assess an administrative and use fee unless waived by the Tribal Council.

**MOTION** by Bing Matt to approve the 25-year renewal option for the Salish Kootenai Housing Authority to utilize Tribal Tract T1351 (.69 acres) for the water tower in Arlee and assess a \$25 annual use fee and the one-time administrative fee of \$18.75. Seconded by Leonard TwoTeeth. Carried, 7 for; 1 opposed (Ron Trahan).

**Ron Trahan**, for the record, "I'm opposed because it provides a service to the tribal communities."

**Carolee Wenderoth**, Tribal Lands Department, discussed the boundaries for the Volunteer Fire Department. The Fire Department is requesting that due to limited resources to access areas that some areas be removed from their boundaries. Those properties do not have any structures on them. The Lands Department recommended redistricting the boundaries as proposed by the Rural Fire Department.

**MOTION** by Vernon Finley to approve by resolution the recommendations of the Tribal Lands Department to redistrict the boundaries for the Polson Fire District. Seconded by Leonard TwoTeeth. Carried, 8 for; 0 opposed; 0 not voting.

## **RESOLUTION 14-164**

RESOLUTION APPROVING REDISTRICTING BOUNDARIES FOR THE POLSON FIRE DISTRICT

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRIBAL COUNCIL OF THE CONFEDERATED SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES THAT:

**WHEREAS**, The Polson Fire District requests Tribal Council approval to deannex Tribal Trust forest lands from their fire district that currently has Wildland fire suppression protection by Tribal Division of Fire:

Polson Fire District: Current Total (ac) Proposed Total (ac) Percent Change 127,682 100,306 21.4%

**WHEREAS**, the fire district will continue to provide existing services, including but not limited to structure fire suppression, Wildland fire suppression, emergency medical services, motor vehicle accident fire suppression, rescue and recovery, and hazardous materials mitigations, to all residents, visitors, and structures in Polson Fire District; and

**WHEREAS**, the fire district requests approval to reduce their district size to exclude Tribal Trust forest lands to decrease their department's financial liability for cost sharing within overlapping jurisdictions with Bureau of Indian Affairs and organizational liability to staff remote and/or long term Wildland fire suppression efforts; and

**WHEREAS**, requested lands for de-annexation are currently protected and managed for Wildland fire suppression by CSK Tribal Division of Fire that includes all Tribal Trust land and State of Montana lands within the reservation exterior boundary; and

**WHEREAS**, the Polson Fire District commits to a dialogue with the CSKT Tribal government to maintain communication and to communicate and meet with the Tribal Lands Department (TLD) on an annual basis to update the Polson Fire District map to include any newly designated home sites to ensure structure protection; and

**NOW THEREFORE**, **BE IT RESOLVED**, that the Tribal Council of the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes hereby approves de-annexing Tribal Trust Forest Lands as proposed by the Polson Fire District.

**Carolee Wenderoth**, Tribal Lands Department, presented a request from Knife River to use the old Seepay gravel pit site as a truck turnaround during a shoulder widening and overlay project of Highway 200 at a fee of \$500. They would use the site for about one week. Knife River would be required to post a bond to ensure that they return the site to its original condition; an inspection would be completed.

**MOTION** by Leonard Gray to grant Knife River a revocable permit at a fee of \$500. Seconded by Terry Pitts. Carried, 7 for; 1 opposed (Carole Lankford).

Carole Lankford and Shelly Fyant discussed an issue regarding Sashay Camel and Isadore Mitchell's homesite at the old Joe Cullooyah site. Shelly thought the issue had been resolved but then their names were published in the newspaper that their lease was getting cancelled. Clayton Matt will follow up. Council requested that Clayton Matt be present in the council meetings during the Tribal Lands Department presentations.

**Dan Lozar**, Natural Resources Department, requested approval of a modification to the existing contract (# 13-158) with MWH Engineering to increase the contract amount by \$801,500 to a not-to-exceed amount of \$1,550,900 and extend the contract expiration date to December 31, 2015 to facilitate a revised scope of work due to findings from the initial evaluation of the outlet works and emergency spillway. The project is paid for from the Bureau of Indian Affairs Safety of Dams funding.

**MOTION** by Leonard Gray to approve the modification to the existing contract (# 13-158) with MWH Engineering to increase the contract amount by \$801,500 to a not-to-exceed amount of \$1,550,900 and extend the contract expiration date to December 31, 2015 to facilitate a revised scope of work due to findings from the initial evaluation of the outlet works and emergency spillway. Seconded by Carole Lankford. Carried, 7 for; 1 opposed (Leonard TwoTeeth).

**Dan Lozar**, Natural Resources Department, will start a road safety audit on all roads on the reservation and they want to go to the tribal council district meetings to find out where some of the safety concerns are so those can be incorporated into the safety plan. **Council** had no objection to Dan attending their district meetings.

**Terry Pitts** asked about a project at the Dixon Agency. Terry expressed his frustration; this is the third time the Dixon project has been put in place and then at the last moment get bumped. **Dan Lozar** reported that the project will not happen this summer. Sundown is the next project on the TIP. **Leonard TwoTeeth** asked about the Big Arm Townsite. Dan said a portion of it is on the TIP.

# \*\*\*\*\*\* Break \*\*\*\*\*\*

**Rhonda Swaney**, Legal Department, requested approval of a resolution authorizing a consultation and professional services contract with Spiker Communications, Inc. There is sufficient funding in the existing budget.

**MOTION** by Shelly Fyant to approve by resolution a consultation and professional services contract with Spiker Communications, Inc. Seconded by Bing Matt. Carried, 7 for; 0 opposed; 1 not voting (Leonard TwoTeeth out of the room).

## **RESOLUTION 14-165**

A RESOLUTION THE ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR CONSULTATION AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH SPIKER COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

# BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRIBAL COUNCIL OF THE CONFEDERATED SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES:

**WHEREAS**, the Tribal Council, as primary governing body of the Flathead Nation, is entrusted with the responsibility to protect and preserve Tribal property, wildlife and natural resources, and to protect the health, security and general welfare of the Tribes, and

**WHEREAS**, protection and preservation of property, wildlife, natural resources, health, security, and general welfare of the Tribes is among the highest priorities of the Tribes, and

**WHEREAS**, the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes wish to secure, and Spiker Communications, Inc. wishes to provide personal, professional communications expertise, services, consultation; and,

**WHEREAS**, the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes intend to retain Spiker Communications, Inc. to assist in further planning and developing effective communications concerning the Proposed Compact; and

**WHEREAS**, Spiker Communications, Inc., has agreed to provide their personal professional services according to the terms and conditions of a contract for consultation and professional services.

**THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED**, the Tribal Council approves said agreement and authorizes its execution by the Chairman and the Tribal Secretary.

**Rhonda Swaney**, Legal Department, requested approval of a two-year contract for consultation and professional services with Mercury Public Affairs, LLC.

**MOTION** by Leonard Gray to approve by resolution a contract for consultation and professional services with Mercury Public Affairs, LLC. Seconded by Shelly Fyant. Carried, 6 for; 1 opposed (Terry Pitts); 1 not voting (Leonard TwoTeeth out of the room).

**Terry Pitts**, for the record, "I understand and support what council is doing; my opposition is with Denny Rehberg."

## **RESOLUTION 14-166**

A RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR CONSULTATION AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH MERCURY PUBLIC AFFAIRS, LLC

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRIBAL COUNCIL OF THE CONFEDERATED SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES:

**WHEREAS**, the Tribal Council, as primary governing body of the Flathead Nation, is entrusted with the responsibility to protect and preserve Tribal property, wildlife and natural resources, and to protect the health, security and general welfare of the Tribes, and

**WHEREAS**, protection and preservation of property, wildlife, natural resources, health, security, and general welfare of the Tribes is among the highest priorities of the Tribes, and

**WHEREAS**, the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes wish to secure, and Mercury Public Affairs, LLC, wishes to provide personal, professional expertise, services, and consultation; and

**WHEREAS**, the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes intend to retain Mercury Public Affairs, LLC, to develop a strategic public relations campaign to assist the Tribes in obtaining a favorable consideration of the Proposed Water Rights Compact by the 2015 Montana Legislature; and

**WHEREAS**, Mercury Public Affairs, LLC, has agreed to provide their personal professional services according to the terms and conditions of a contract for consultation and professional services;

**THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED**, the Tribal Council approves said agreement and authorizes its execution by the Chairman and the Tribal Secretary.

**John Harrison** and **Brian Upton**, Legal Department, requested to meet with council in **executive session** to discuss Bison Range issues.

Council reconvened into **regular session**.

**MOTION** by Shelly Fyant to approve the letter and the comments. Seconded by Bing Matt. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

**Council** discussed the State-Tribal Economic Development Commission appointments.

**MOTION** by Vernon Finley to appoint Leonard Gray as alternate and Terry Pitts as delegate of the State-Tribal Economic Development Commission. Seconded by Bing Matt. Carried, 6 for; 2 abstentions (Terry Pitts and Leonard Gray).

**Chairman Trahan** asked for a council member to provide the welcoming remarks at the Environmental Protection Agency Regional Meeting in Polson on June 17 at 9:00 a.m. **Vernon Finley** will provide welcoming remarks.

**Shelly Fyant** discussed the budget committee meeting that took place yesterday. (1) A donation request from an Arlee community member. **Chairman Trahan** would like the donation request to go through the Donation Committee.

(2) Law and Order budget for pow wow security. The final recommendation was to approve funding of \$58,777.52 but have Law & Order work within that to bring it down for their officers and special security officers. The budget director told the budget committee that there are unspent BIA compacted funds, so the council wondered why the department was not aware of the funds and why the money has not been spent.

**MOTION** by Shelly Fyant to approve the funding request from Law and Order in the amount of \$58,777.52 to provide pow wow security. Seconded by Carole Lankford. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

(3) On April 10 the tribal council had discussed and approved a proposed pilot project. Payne West still does not have a contract with Tribal Health so it was recommended that the budget committee oversee that contract. **No action taken**. **Chairman Trahan** will schedule a meeting with Kevin Howlett.

**Vernon Finley** and **Leonard TwoTeeth** reported on last night's Polson/Elmo District Meeting. 70 people attended the meeting.

**Brian Lipscomb** and **Joe Hovenkotter**, Energy Keepers, Inc., discussed the notice of withdrawal of protest relative to the transfer of the Kerr license. The legal counsel recommended approval of this and the final agreement is ready for the chairman's signature.

**MOTION** by Leonard Gray to authorize legal counsel to file the Notice of Withdrawal of Protest and Comments of the Confederated Salish and Kootenai Tribes of the Flathead Reservation. Seconded by Bing Matt. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

**Sharon Silberman** informed council that the donation request brought up by Shelly Fyant does not fit the Donation Policy since the child is not a tribal member. The family is looking for monetary donations to help the family expenses. **Council** agreed to provide paper products for a fundraiser, if needed.

**Council** discussed the Sergeant at Arms position.

**MOTION** by Leonard Gray to appoint Bill Kehoe as the sergeant at arms. Seconded by Bing Matt. Carried, unanimous (8 present).

Council **adjourned** at 4:20 p.m., and is scheduled to meet again on Tuesday, June 17, 2014, at 9:00 a.m.

# CONFEDERATED SALISH AND KOOTENAI TRIBES

/sgnd/	James V. Matt	
	Tribal Secretary	